
Program Committee Meeting[image: ]












April 7, 2022
ShaRhonda Knott Dawson, Committee Chair





Table of Contents
Meeting Agenda…………………………………...…..….......…...3
January 20th Minutes (Attachment A) ……….............…......…. 4-6
Advocacy: Voices of Reentry Webinar Flyer  (Attachment B)........7
Civil Rights Memo (Attachment C)............................................8-11
















Access Living Program Committee
Meeting Agenda
April 7, 2022



1. 4:00 PM- Call to Order (Chair Knott Dawson)
2. 4:01 PM- Roll Call (Chair Knott Dawson)
3. 4:02 PM- Welcome (Chair Knott Dawson)
4. 4:03 PM- Approval of Minutes (Chair Knott Dawson) (Attachment A)
5. 4:05 PM -Advocacy Department Updates (Smock)
a. Building Our Power Together Organizing Training (link)
b. Update on Voices of Reentry Webinars (Attachment B)
c. Verbal update on Illinois State Legislation and Next Steps
6. 4:30 PM - Independent Living Updates (Seye)
a. Verbal update on Access Living’s meeting with CPS Leadership
b. Verbal update on Independent Living’s Outreach Program
7. 4:40 PM - Independent Living Presentation:  P.A. Trainings (Dawson & Granzow)
8. 5:05 PM: Civil Rights Department Updates (Walden) (Attachment C)
a. Update on Haymarket Case
b. Update on CPS Case
9. 5:30 PM-Closing/Adjournment (Chair Knott Dawson)

 









Access Living Program CommitteeA.

Meeting Agenda
January 20, 2022

In Attendance: John Schmidt, Neil Hartigan, David Capozzi, Larry Goodman, Sangeeta Patel-Driver, ShaRhonda Knott-Dawson, Joyce Lane, Denise Avant, Amber Smock, Trish Seye, Ken Walden, Jerome Palliser, Reba Pope

1. 4:00 PM- Call to Order (Chair Knott Dawson)
2. 4:01 PM- Roll Call (Chair Knott Dawson)
3. 4:04 PM- Welcome/Introductions (Chair Knott Dawson)
4. 4:23 PM- Approval of Minutes from Last Meeting (Chair Knott Dawson) 
a. Approved by Larry Goodman
b. Seconded by David Capozzi
c. Unanimously approved
5. 4:23 PM - Independent Living Updates (Seye)
a. Independent Living is still going interviews with the AC Green show and Community Support.
b. Due to a recent strike with CPS, our Youth Team has stopped entering schools temporarily.
6. 4:06 PM- Advocacy Department Updates (Smock)
a. State Legislative Priorities 2022
i. The Legislative Accessibility Act would designate a person in the House and Senate to be responsible for accommodations to visitors to the Capitol, create a reasonable request form on the website, and establish a taskforce to find better improvements.
ii. Electronic Voting is an important issue that Denise Avant, a fellow Board member, and others have been working on. We are supporting her leadership in pushing for a fully electronic voting process option; the State is only committed so far to sending people a ballot electronically. Eight states have already implemented accessible electronic voting, and we hope to do it as well.
iii. Access Living may or may not be pushing this year for phasing out statewide minimum wage.
iv. There are currently three housing bills. The first is asking for $7.5 million from the State to invest in home modification. The second is to end Source of Income Discrimination. The third is an automatic renewal of disability status for homeowners using a homestead tax exemption.
v. Access Living is continuing to push for accountability in nursing homes and supporting a Medicaid expansion for immigrants who currently have no health insurance. 
vi. On February 2nd, Governor Pritzker will lay out his budget plans and we already have internal staff preparing to meet if responses are needed.
vii. “Representative Schakowsky has introduced visitability legislation on a federal basis. Would a bill such as that work for Illinois?” (Capozzi)
1. Realtors and developers are formidable opponents, and housing advocates will have to build on their momentum. We have supported this in the past and would need to re-evaluate whether we can advance this in the future. (Smock)
viii. “Is there anything to report on CESSA?” (Schmidt)
1. The State spent time setting up the new 988 number, so we have been meeting with the state 911 dispatch leaders in the meantime. The City has started embedding mental health workers in their 911 centers. DHS-DMH plans to start having CESSA implementation sessions in February and March. Given the State’s delays, we are not sure the original CESSA deadlines will hold, but we will navigate that as we go along (Smock)
ix. “Two social workers were recently shot. What is your take on the pushback from police departments [on implementation]?” (Knott-Dawson)
1. We are committed to providing facts to the community and not spin. We are also in dialogue with many organizations that care about ensuring that hard-won criminal system reforms are not rolled back due to fear propaganda. (Smock)
b. Verbal update on CPS Advocacy 
i. There is currently a bill in the House that will clarify that when a student is sent home during the school day, it will be qualified as a “removal” and be documented. Currently these situations are not being recorded which affects IEP numbers. (Lally)
ii. CPS enrollment has declined, but it does not appear to be a disability issue. The ratio of disabled vs. non-disabled students has stayed the same. Nevertheless there is a worry about the low number of special education teachers.  We are working on establishing a rapport with new CPS CEO Pedro Martinez. (Lally)
iii. “I have had a lot of calls from Black parents looking for advocacy help, but there is a shortage of advocacy front line communication. I’ll meet with Frank to talk.” (Knott-Dawson)
1. Our Program Committee Chair is also now on the state council on the education of children with disabilities.
7. 5:03 PM: Civil Rights Department Updates (Walden)
a. Filing of Haymarket Complaint
i. Access Living has recently filed a lawsuit on behalf of Haymarket claiming the Village of Itasca was discriminating against people with disabilities. There was a press conference which generated a lot of local attention. The goal of the lawsuit is to force Itasca to allow Haymarket to open this center and treat people with substance abuse disorder.
ii. About two months ago, the Department of Justice sent a formal letter alerting Itasca they are formally being investigated for denying Haymarket’s zoning application. 
iii. “Besides ambulance issues, were there other reasons cited for denial? How did Access Living address them?” (Patel-Driver)
1. There were false claims that the children of Haymarket parents would try to enroll their children in the Itasca school system. To address this baseless concern, Haymarket decided it would not offer its Mother-Child program in Itasca.
iv. “During COVID, the shelters had to change their set-up to reduce congregate settings.  Now some are looking to change back. Are we a part of that conversation?” (Knott-Dawson)
1. I am unsure if Access Living is part of those discussions.
v. “I am thinking of how the Communication team worked with the Advocacy team to bring the Amtrak story forward. How can we do this again for these media stories to display these issues that make no sense? We should be looking at ways that lend our reputation to help bring these issues to light.” (Knott-Dawson)
8. 5:30 PM-Closing/Adjournment (Chair Knott Dawson)


















B.

[image: ]




































CONFIDENTIAL AND PRIVILEGED: DO NOT DISTRIBUTEC.


MEMORANDUM
TO: Program Committee
FROM: Charles Petrof, Mary Rosenberg, and Ken Walden
RE: Update on City of Chicago case (Affordable Rental Housing Program), City of Chicago case (Emergency Shelters), Haymarket treatment facility case, and case against the Chicago Public Schools
DATE: March 22, 2022
_________________________________________________________________________
Note: New information/new updates in bold font.
City of Chicago (Affordable Rental Housing Program) – Federal Court Case
This case alleges the City of Chicago’s Affordable Rental Housing Program, over three decades, failed to comply with federal civil rights laws that require the program to be accessible to people with disabilities, and that this failure has contributed to the dearth of affordable and accessible housing opportunities throughout the city.
As reported previously, the parties have moved into the discovery phase of litigation, which involves the sharing of information with each side via formal written requests for information, and interviews with potential witnesses.
District Court Judge Dow referred the parties to Magistrate Judge Cole to manage the discovery process. We have regularly been before Judge Cole. On two separate occasions in August and September, Judge Cole ordered the City to produce certain documents. In each instance, the City failed to comply with Cole’s order. Accordingly, we filed a Motion to Enforce those orders, which asks Judge Cole to require the City to produce a certain number of documents by the 30th day of each month. Judge Cole granted the Motion, which forced the City to produce certain documents in a timely manner.
Discovery continues. We have started to schedule site inspections of City-supported/City-funding affordable rental housing throughout Chicago, to assess compliance with federal accessibility requirements. We retained two architect experts to conduct these inspections. We anticipate they will assess over 90 properties, a sufficient sample size from which to draw conclusions about the City’s compliance with accessibility requirements. Site inspections started in January.
Depositions are on-going.

City of Chicago (Housing Shelters) – Federal Court Case
This case alleges the City of Chicago’s Emergency Shelter Care System is not accessible to people with mobility disabilities, in violation of Title II of the ADA. The City filed a Motion to Dismiss our complaint. After completing briefing on the City’s Motion, District Court Judge Feinerman took oral argument and focused his questions on the issue of standing. After oral argument, Judge Feinerman ordered discovery to begin but took the motion to dismiss under advisement. Some of Judge Feinerman’s questions suggested he believed a plaintiff could only have standing to pursue injunctive relief if the plaintiff remained homeless during the pendency of the entire litigation. We disagree and think housing instability, with a future threat of homelessness, is sufficient. This question seems to be the primary impediment to our effort to address the lack of accessible shelter placements.
The case was later reassigned to a new judge, Judge Valderrama, who ruled on the Motion to Dismiss. He ruled our client has standing to sue for injunctive relief, which is a big victory that enables the matter to move forward toward the goal of remedying the systemic access problem within the shelter system. However, he also decided our client did not have standing to sue for individual damages. This was a disappointment, but fortunately our client does not have a large claim for individual damages.
On April 8, 2021, Access Living’s group DRACH (Disability Rights Action Coalition for Housing) filed a Motion to join the litigation. DRACH alleges standing, both on behalf of its homeless members, and in its own right, for frustration of its mission to advance the cause of affordable and accessible housing. We filed the Motion to protect the suit from a claim of mootness. If Ms. Carter were to find stable housing, her claim might become moot, but DRACH’s claims would remain. This would allow us to address the underlying question about the accessibility of the City’s shelter system. The court granted our Motion to add DRACH as a plaintiff.
Both sides have initiated discovery. Plaintiffs have answered the first batch of discovery propounded by the City. The City has since propounded a second batch of discovery to both Ms. Carter and to DRACH. We are still gathering our responses. The City has produced some documents in response to Plaintiffs’ requests, but is dragging its feet on a full response. To give some context to the City’s failure robustly to answer our discovery questions, DRACH has produced its copies of City documents that DRACH obtained during pre-litigation advocacy, but the City has yet to recognize the existence of these same documents in discovery production, let alone produce the other material that would necessarily be connected to these documents.
The City has also hired the firm of Jackson Lewis to assist it in defending this case. We continue to seek the discovery the City obviously failed to turn over. The addition of Jackson Lewis has only contributed to the delay.
Since the last update, we have answered all discovery requested of Ms. Carter and DRACH. The City has still not responded to our November 2021 letter that detailed its discovery shortcomings, although the City suggests its attorneys have finally gathered a significant number of documents which might be responsive. Due to the City’s delay, the Judge extended the fact discovery period to September 9, 2022.
Haymarket Treatment Facility in Itasca – Federal Court Case
We represent Haymarket in its application to operate a treatment facility in Itasca for individuals with substance abuse disorder and related mental health disabilities. The Haymarket effort has faced stiff and vocal opposition from members of the Itasca community. Note that those in recovery are considered people with disabilities under the federal Fair Housing Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act.
With our law firm partners, Daspin & Aument, and Bond, Dickson & Conway, we aimed to get approval for the facility from the Village of Itasca, through a series of zoning hearings conducted before the Itasca Plan Commission. However, we expected the Village to deny Haymarket’s application, which it did. First, the Plan Commission voted to recommend that the Village Board deny Haymarket’s application. Then, on November 2, the Board voted to deny the application.
On Tuesday, January 11, 2022, due to the rejection of Haymarket’s proposal, we filed a complaint in federal court. The principal goal of the lawsuit is to force Itasca to reverse its decision, which is rooted in discrimination against people with disabilities. We also seek damages and attorneys’ fees. On the morning of the filing, we conducted a media event in front of the Access Living building. That event, in combination with other public relations work by Access Living’s Communications Team and Haymarket’s public relations team, generated a great deal of local and national media coverage. For example, every local news station, and every major paper in the area, covered the filing, and the story was picked up by the AP wire, which led to pieces in the Washington Post, Newsweek, and U.S. News and World Report, among many other newspapers.
Each defendant was served with the Complaint. The Village of Itasca, the Plan Commission, and Itasca’s Mayor filed an Answer. The Fire District filed a Motion to Dismiss. The School District and its Superintendent also filed a Motion to Dismiss. We will file briefs (arguments) to oppose the Motions to Dismiss. They are due April 29. In the meantime, while the motions are pending before the court, discovery will occur.

CPS (Nursing in Therapeutic Day Schools) – Federal Court Case
We represent a CPS student with multiple disabilities. For years, through the IEP process, CPS has provided a full-time nurse to administer seizure medication to the student. CPS provided the nurse even though our client was placed in charter and therapeutic day schools for most of the time he received nursing services. At the start of this year, coinciding with a return to in-person learning and a national nurse shortage, CPS suddenly announced that our client’s therapeutic day school was responsible for finding the nurse to satisfy the requirements of the IEP.
CPS has so many administrative requirements related to nursing services for its students that it is practically impossible for any therapeutic day school to hire a nurse on its own. The new policy amounted to a de facto denial of nursing services. The client, up to this point, had been working with the Loyola Civitas ChildLaw Clinic. With this new nursing policy, Loyola asked us to co-counsel with them to file a challenge to the policy under the ADA.
On September 10, 2021, we filed a Complaint against CPS. It argues the change in administrative methods is prohibited because it discriminated against children whose disabilities require nursing services. On September 17, 2021, having been unable to resolve the matter through negotiation, we filed a Motion for a Temporary Restraining Order (TRO) to stop CPS from changing its method of administering nursing services. The Court asked for full briefing on our motion.
We appeared in court three times on our motion. After briefing, CPS changed its behavior and began to search for a nurse to fill the terms of our client’s IEP, which resulted in the judge holding off on making a ruling on the motion. Unfortunately, the effort by CPS to secure a nurse has been a challenge due to the national nursing shortage, and the fact that CPS pays nurses at a rate below the market rate. To date, no nurse has been hired.
On November 3, 2021, the judge denied our request to issue the TRO, which was a disappointment.
Even though the judge denied our request for a TRO, we negotiated a settlement with CPS. We worked out a higher payment standard and reimbursement terms to allow the therapeutic day school to hire a nurse. If a nurse is not identified in a timely manner, we will meet with CPS to look at other potential placements. We dismissed the litigation in compliance with the terms of the settlement, and the search for a nurse continues.
The search for a nurse finally bore fruit. With significant assistance from our co-counsel at the Loyola Childlaw Clinic, our client’s therapeutic day school hired a full-time nurse, and CPS is reimbursing the school for that nurse at a rate above the contract rate for CPS nurses. Our client achieved all the goals he sought to achieve when he retained us. We have completed work on this litigation.


image2.png
DISABILITY

SYSTEM

JUSTICE & THE
CRIMINAL-LEGAL

Join Access Living for a three-part
series featuring firsthand accounts
from formerly incarcerated people with
disabilities. Learn about the driving
factors behind this pressing issue and
how we can begin enacting change.

CLICK HERE TO

CRIMINALIZING
DISABILITY

APRIL 12, 6-7:30 PM CT

DISABILITY ON THE
INSIDE

APRIL 19, 6-7:30 PM CT
RESISTING AND

PERSISTING
APRIL 26, 6-7:30 PM CT

IN PARTNERSHIP

WITH THE
MACARTHUR SAFETY
& JUSTICE
CHALLENGE




image4.png




image1.png




image5.png




image3.png




